
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 8, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

February 8, 2022, at 6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a) Action Memorandum No. 22-011: To Authorize the City Manager to Sign Amendment
No. 4 to the Contract for Services with Green Garden Services in the Amount of $47,125 to
Reflect 2022 Payments

b) Action Memorandum No. 22-012: accepting the Mat-Su Foundation Health and Wellness
of Alaskans Discretionary Grant for $1,000 Towards the Development of a Courtyard
Concept for the Palmer Public Library Entryway and Modifying the Sidewalks for Ease of Use
for Patrons, Snow Removal, Relocating the Flag and Modifying and Securing the Retaining
Wall.

c) Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing Date for February 22, 2022, for Ordinance 22-
001: An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter
12.30 City of Palmer Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor Facilities Donation/Memorial
Policy

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a) January 11, 2022, Regular Meeting
b) January 25, 2022, Regular Meeting

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation from the Alaska Department of Transportation – Glenn Highway Phase III Overview –

Clint Adler, Dennis Linnell and Rori Van Nortwick

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. Mayor’s Report

• Certificate of Bravery – Jackson Gerard
3. City Clerk’s Report – Submission of Three Sufficient Recall Petitions, Special Election April 19, 2022
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Mayor Steven J. Carrington 
Deputy Mayor Pamela Melin 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member Brian Daniels 
Council Member Jill Valerius 
Council Member Carolina Anzilotti 

City Manager John Moosey 
City Clerk Shelly M. Acteson, CMC 
City Attorney Sarah Heath, Esq. 

......................................................................................... Page  3

.................................................................................................................. Page 23

................................................................................................................. Page 27

....................................................................... Page 41
....................................................................... Page 45

............................................................... Page 51

.............................................................................................................. Page 53

11

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: February 8, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Resolution No. 22-007: Accepting and Appropriating Healthy & Equitable Communities Grant

Funds from the State of Alaska, Department of Health and Social Services, and Division of Public
Health in the Amount of $42,080.80 to Provide Support to the Community for COVID-19 Response
and Mitigation Activities.

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
1. Action Memorandum 22-009: Approving a Council Community Grant to United Way of Mat-Su

J. NEW BUSINESS

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION

N. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

O. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Feb 22 Regular 6pm 
Mar 08 Regular 6pm 
Mar 22 Regular 6pm 
Apr 12 Regular 6pm 
Apr 26 Regular 6pm 
May 10 Regular 6pm 
May 24 Regular 6pm 
Jun 14 Regular 6pm 
Jun 28 Regular 6pm 

................................................................................................ Page 57

................................................................................................................................... Page 69

22



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-011 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 22-011 

 
Subject:  Authorize the City Manager to sign amendment No. 4 to the Contract for Services with Greene Garden 
Services of $47,125, to reflect 2022 payments 
 
Agenda of: February 8, 2022 
 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 

 ☐ Defeated 

 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Brad Hanson, Director Community Development 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 

  Community Development 
 

 January 19, 2022 

  Finance    

  Fire    

  Police     

  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 47,125 
 

This legislation (√): 

 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  

√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 47,125.00 

 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  

 Has no fiscal impact   
 

Funds are (√): 

√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-01-20-6030 

 Not budgeted   
 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

 

 

Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 

City Attorney   

City Clerk   
 

3



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-011 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Green Garden Services Contract 
2. Amendment No. 4 to Contract for Garden Services 
3. Greene Garden Services Letter of Intent for 2022  

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Approval of this AM will authorize payments of $47,125 to Greene Garden Services for beautification and garden 
services in FY 2022.  Alicia Greene owner of Greene Garden Services has successfully performed gardening 
services at the Visitor Information Center Garden since 2014.  This contract was executed in 2018, it was a one-
year contract with options for four one-year contract extensions.  This will be the final year of the 2018 
agreement.  The city began contracting for gardening services in 2004.   
 
Appendix A outlines the Green Garden Services scope of services for seasonal gardening and horticulture services. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-011 Authorizing the City Manager to sign amendment No. 4 for Gardening 
Services with Greene Garden Services to reflect payments for 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



Contract For Services 
City of Palmer and Green Garden Services 

Amendment No. 4 
 

This Amendment dated  , 2022 amends the Contract for Services 
dated January 30, 2022, between the City of Palmer and Greene Garden Services for 
gardening services, as follows: 
 
Appendix B – Budget Proposal is amended to reflect the follow payment amounts for 2022: 
 

 March April May June July Septe
mber 

 

Invoice Date 3/1/2022       4/1/2022      5/1/2022       6/1/2022         7/1/2022       9/1/2022 Totals 
2022 

Labor & 
Operating 
Costs 

4250 4050 6000 6000 9000 5500 34800 

Equipment 750 250 200    1200 

Seeds/Plants/S
oil/Compost 

1200 750 1500 1250  225 4925 

Hanging 
Baskets 
Museum 

  1100    1100 

Lawncare 
Contractor 

 450 600 600 1350 600 3600 

Tree Service 
Contractor 

 1000    500 1500 

        

Total Payment 
Amount 

6200 6500 
 

9400 7850 10350 6825 47125 

        

 
All other provisions of this Agreement remain unchanged. 
 
City of Palmer Greene Garden Services 
 
 
 
   

John Moosey Date Alicia Greene Date 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
    ) ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
On _______________, 2022, Alicia Green personally appeared before me, 
 
1. [   ] who is personally known to me 
2. [   ] whose identity I proved on the basis of ________________________ 
3. [   ] whose identity I proved on the oath/affirmation of __________________, a credible 
witness to be the signer of the Amendment No. 10 of the Contract for Curatorial, Archival and Museum 
Services between the City and the Palmer Museum of History and Art and she acknowledged that she 
signed it. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public 

19



My Commission expires: _______________ 
 

 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 

    ) ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 

 
On _______________, 2022, John Moosey, City Manager, personally appeared before me, who is 
personally known to me, to be the signer of the above document, and he acknowledged that he signed 
it on behalf of the City of Palmer. 
 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public 
My Commission expires: _______________ 

20



TO:  Brad Hanson 
  Community Development Director 
  City of Palmer Alaska 

CC:  Jude Bilafer 
  Director of Public Works 
  City of Palmer Alaska 
   

FROM: Greene Garden Services 
Alicia Greene, 200 E Ravenview Drive, Wasilla, AK 99654 
907-982-8279 
akpetmom@gmail.com 

DATE:   January 11, 2022 

RE: Seasonal Gardening/Horticultural Services for the City of Palmer 

CONTENTS: Letter of Intent 

I would like to continue my relationship with the City of Palmer as the Seasonal 
Gardening/Horticultural Services contractor for the 2022 season under the same 
contractual guidelines as the 2021 contract.  This would be year 5 of the existing 5 year 
contract.  

Also attached is a copy of my 2021 budget and payment schedule to attach to the 
contract amendment for City Council approval. 

I am confident that in 2021 I and my contractors managed all gardens and projects in a 
manner that is consistent with my contractual obligations.  Feedback from both locals 
and visitors has been very positive. 

If the city sees fit I look forward to continuing in my role as Seasonal Gardening and 
Horticultural Services provider for the City of Palmer. 

Sincerely, 

Alicia Greene 
Greene Garden Services 
907-982-8279 

21



22



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-012 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 22-012 

 
Subject:  Accepting of Mat-Su Foundation Health and Wellness of Alaskans Discretionary Grant for $1,000   
Towards the Development of a Courtyard Concept for the Palmer Public Library Entryway and Modifying the 
Sidewalks for Ease of Use for Patrons, Snow Removal, Relocating the Flag and Modifying and Securing the 
Retaining Wall. 
 
 
Agenda of:  February 8, 2022 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Community Development Director    
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development 

 

 January 11, 2022 
   Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ $1,000.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
√ Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 08-00-00-3433 Library Grant Revenue 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

23



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-012 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Letter from Mat-Su Health Foundation award letter of Board Discretionary Grant to the PPL 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Acceptance of Mat-Su Foundation Health and Wellness of Alaskans Discretionary Grant for $1,000.   PPL will use 
the money towards the development of a courtyard concept for the entry way of the library and modifying the 
sidewalks for ease of use and snow removal, relocating the flag, and securing the retaining wall.   
 
The current sidewalk concrete is crumbling and has very deep cracks that make it hard for disabled as well as 
healthy patrons to access the library.      
 
City Council approved $70,000 for library sidewalks during the 2022 Budget Process under Capital Improvement 
Plan.  
  
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-012 
 
 
 
 
 
  

24



25



26



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 22-001 

 
Subject:  An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 12.30 City of Palmer 
Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor Facilities Donation/Memorial Policy and Repealing Ordinance 17-008-S 
A City of Palmer Parks, Recreation, and Outdoor Facilities Donation Policy 
 
Agenda of: February 8, 2022 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Brad Hanson, Director Community Development 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development 

  January 26, 2022 
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

27



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Ordinance No. 22-001 
2. Edits to City of Palmer Parks, Recreation and Outdoor Facilities Donation Policy 17-008-S 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
In 2017 the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board passed a resolution supporting the Palmer City Council to adopt 
a Parks Donation Policy.  When introduced in 2017, the policy contained language regarding memorials on public 
property.  During discussion, the city council amended the proposed ordinance to eliminate memorials on public 
lands unless it was in conjunction with a donated park bench, picnic table, bicycle rack or a tree.  Ordinance 17-
008-S, City of Palmer Parks, Recreation, and Outdoor Facilities Donation Policy passed unanimously. City Council 
conducted three public hearings on the ordinance before the ordinance was passed. 
 
Ordinance 17-008-S did not codify the policy language in Palmer Municipal Code (PMC).  This ordinance enacts 
PMC Chapter 12.30 and includes language regarding memorials placed on Parks, Recreational Facilities and 
Outdoor Facilities.  The ordinance if adopted creates standards and a criterion for the placement of memorials on 
or in park, recreational facilities, and outdoor facilities.  This ordinance will give staff needed direction for the 
placement of memorials on or in public facilities in Palmer. 
 
Ordinance 22-001 allows the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board with the concurrence of the city council to 
adopt standard components for parks, trails and outdoor facilities for park benches, picnic tables, bicycle racks 
and trees.  Creating standard City of Palmer Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor facilities will assist the city 
in fully developing parks. Acceptable standards for components and facilitate the donation process.   
 
Included as an attachment are the edits proposed to Ordinance 17-008-S as a reference. 
 
This ordinance does not amend how parks are named.  
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 22-001 Enacting Chapter 12.30 City of Palmer Parks, Facilities and Outdoor Facilities 
Donation/Memorial Policy.  
 
 

28



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 22-001 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 12.30 City of 
Palmer Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor Facilities Donation/Memorial Policy 
 

WHEREAS, the city has public land that citizens enjoy throughout the year; and  
 

WHEREAS, many citizens and visitors desire to assist and enhance these public lands through donating 
items; and 

 
WHEREAS, many citizens contribute significantly to the quality of life in Palmer and should be 

memorialized on public property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (Board) developed and recommends an update to 
standard operating procedure for accepting and maintaining donations and for accepting memorials for public 
use at Parks, Recreational, and Outdoor facilities. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be incorporated into the 
Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to the other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. The City of Palmer Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor Facilities Donation/Memorial 
Policy is hereby enacted to read as follows:  
 
12.30.010 Purpose and intent.  
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, standards, and procedures for the acceptance, installation, 
and care of donated park improvements, including memorial plaques, either as a result of a cash or physical 
property donation. These donations may include, but are not limited to, park benches, picnic tables, bicycle 
racks, trees, monuments, memorials, banners, interpretive signs, public art, and other types of park and trails 
accessories. This policy does not apply to buildings or land. The city desires to encourage donations while at 
the same time manage aesthetic impacts and mitigate on-going maintenance cost.  Guidelines established by 
this policy will apply to all donations made after the effective date of this policy. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by:  

Date:  
Public Hearing:  

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

29



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 2 of 5 

Donations will be incorporated into upcoming or ongoing park improvement projects. The development of 
public facilities is expected to be the result of careful planning and quality construction. In addition, public 
facilities are expected to be maintained to a standard acceptable to the community. 
 
Standards established by this policy will apply to donated equipment, installation techniques, memorial 
plaques, donation plaques, decoration and long-term care of all donations made after the adoption of this 
policy. Materials and design of such donations shall be reviewed by the Board; 
A.  Donations approved by the Board as City Of Palmer (COP) standards item may be accepted by the Parks 
and Facility Manager. 
B. The Board shall forward their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed donation to the city 
Council for final action on any non-standard park and facility donation. 
 
12.30.020 Standards for Donations.  
A. Acquisition or Purpose: The city and the community have an interest in ensuring that park and trail elements 
donated and installed be of high quality related to style, appearance, durability and ease of maintenance. The 
Board will be responsible for review and approval of material and design of all park elements.  The Board may 
periodically approve COP standard items for park, trail, recreational facilities and outdoor facilities.   
B. Appearance and Aesthetics: The city and the community have an interest in ensuring the best appearance 
and aesthetic quality of their public facilities. Park elements or Memorial Plaques  and/or their associated 
donation acknowledgments should reflect the character of the park or facility. Prior to installation, the Board 
must determine that all park elements will be installed in such a manner that will not substantially change the 
character of a facility or its intended use. 
C. Cost: The city has an interest in ensuring that the donor covers the full cost of the donation, installation, and 
maintenance for the expected life cycle of donated park elements. A separate fee schedule is maintained in 
which the city will detail costs for donations, installation, and maintenance. The city also has an interest in 
ensuring that ongoing maintenance costs do not negatively impact the resources available for maintenance of 
other City Park facilities.  
 
D. Maintenance: Donated Park elements and/or their associated donation plaques or memorial plaques, become 
city property. Accordingly, the city has the duty to maintain the donation only for the expected life cycle of the 
donation. (See Section 11 for more information on life cycle.) If current information is on file, the donor will be 
informed and given the opportunity to take further action at the expiration of the original life cycle. 
 
E. Repair: The community has an interest in ensuring that all park elements remain in good repair. In addition, 
the public has an interest in ensuring that the short and long-term repair costs are reasonable. Repair parts and 
materials must be readily available. Donated Park elements must be of high quality to ensure a long life, be 
resistant to the elements, wear and tear, and to acts of vandalism. 
 
12.30.030 Procedure for Making A Donation. 
The City's Community Development office will manage all donations located on City Park, Recreational Facilities, 
and Outdoor facilities, with the assistance of the Parks Maintenance Crew. 
A. Application: Applications are sent to the Community Development office to determine whether a donation 
may be accepted based upon criteria contained in this policy. Applications are available through the mail or in 
person at the Community Development office. 
 
12.30.040 Criterial for Acceptance. 
A. Park Plan: To accept donation of a park element for a specific park facility, a park plan must exist showing 
the available locations for park elements. If no plan exists or a plan exists but does not identify a particular park 
element proposed for donation then a donation may be accepted if the donation: 

1) meets a true need of the facility; 
2) not interfere with the intended current or future use or function of the facility; 

30



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 3 of 5 

3) not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the donation. In the 
opinion of the city, a facility may be determined to be fully developed and the opportunity for donations 
would not be available. 
 

B. Donation Plaques: Donation plaques, as approved by the Board, are to be directly affixed to the donation 
and/or, are to be made of bronze and purchased through the city. Donation plaques will be a maximum 5" x 7" 
or 2" x 18" inches in size (depending on the donated item), utilize either "Palatine" or "Cheltenham Light" 
lettering and numbers, have a leatherette or travertine background texture, be of dark brown oxide stain and 
be manufactured by a city approved vendor to ensure highest quality, life and durability. In cases where bronze 
plaques are not feasible, the Board may approve alternative types. 
In park bench applications, the donation plaque will be affixed to the front of the seat back of the bench. In 
picnic table applications, the donation a plaque will be affixed to the table top. In tree installation applications, 
the donation plaque will be installed on a post or on a stone next to the base of the tree. 
C. Notification: It shall be the responsibility of the donor to provide the Community Development office with a 
current address for purposes of notification regarding their donation.  
 
D.  Memorial Plaques:  Memorial plaques, as approved by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and 
confirmed by city council are reserved for individuals who, over the course of time, have made a significant 
contribution to the welfare of a park, recreational facility or outdoor facility.  Applications for memorials are 
submitted by individuals or organizations and are acted upon at the next duly noticed public meeting for the 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.  A resolution by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is then 
forwarded to City Council for final resolution. A person memorialized must have been deceased for a minimum 
of one year, or an event must have occurred a minimum of one year prior, for an application to be submitted. 
Donated memorial plaques are reserved for individuals/events who have had an instrumental role in the 
promotion, establishment, maintenance, administration, or leadership of a park, recreational facility or outdoor 
facility.  This may include an organization, member of an organization or an individual who has donated indirectly 
to the development of a park, recreational facility, or outdoor facility. To accept a memorial plaque for a specific 
park, recreational facility, or outdoor facility it must meet the Standards for Donations in Section 12.30.020 of 
the Parks, Recreational and Outdoor Facilities Donation/Memorial Policy.   Memorial Plaques as approved by the 
board shall meet the Criteria for Acceptance set forth in Section 12.30.040 B of the Parks, Recreational Facilities 
and Outdoor Facilities Donation/Memorial Policy. The memorial plaque must be an element of an adopted 
memorial area within the park, recreational facility or outdoor facility.  If the Memorial is not an element of a 
memorial area it must:  

1) meet a true need of the facility; 
2) not interfere with the intended current or future use or functionality of the facility; 
3) not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the donation; 
4) have timeless qualities and makes a statement of significance to future generations; 
5) represent a person or event deemed significant to Palmer’s history. 

 
12.30.050 Park Benches, Picnic Tables, & Bicycle Racks. 
Park benches, picnic tables, bicycle racks, and playground components may be placed in locations approved by 
the Board in accordance with an available site plan approved by City Council. Items donated must be of a product 
approved by the Board, and these items become city property at time of donation. 
 
12.30.060 Trees. 
Landscaping and plant selection for park facilities is critical due to the wind conditions, soils, and winter weather 
in Palmer. Accordingly, location, size and species of tree or trees proposed for donation shall be limited to those 
reviewed and recommended by the Board. The Board shall forward their recommendation as to the acceptance 
of the proposed tree(s) to City Council for final action. 
Trees will only be accepted for areas with suitable soils for the species and areas that have access to public 
water supply in place. 
 
A. Minimum Tree Size: 
Coniferous trees shall have a minimum height of six feet (6'); and 

31



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 4 of 5 

Deciduous trees shall have a minimum caliper (diameter or thickness) of two inches (2''). 
 
B. Prohibited Plant Species: 
Acerplatanoides      Norway Maple 
Aegopodium podagraria     Bishop's Weed 
Berberis sp.      Barberry 
Caragana arborescens     Siberian Pea Shrub  
Eleagnus sp       Russian Olive  
Euonymus alatus      Burning Bush  
Fallopia japonica      Japanese Knotweed  
Ligistrum sp      Privet 
Lonicera japonica      Japanese Honeysuckle  
Polygonum sp       Knotweed 
Populus alba       White Poplar  
Prunus padus       European Bird Cherry  
Rosa multiflora      Multiflora Rose 
Sorbaria sorbifolia      False Spirea 
Sorbus aucuparia     European Mountain Ash  
Viburnum opulus     European Cranberry Bush 
 
12.30.070 Monuments. 
Upright monuments or monuments resembling those typically found in cemeteries may not be installed at any 
City Park facility. Exceptions to this policy are monuments installed by the city commemorating the history and/or 
dedication of a park facility. 
 
12.30.080 Interpretive & Other Donated Park Signs. 
Interpretive and other donated park signs may be accepted when recommended by the Board. The Board shall 
forward their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed sign to City Council for final action. Signs 
shall be consistent with any adopted city way finding standards may be installed at sites that are appropriate for 
describing the history, geology, environment, and flora and fauna of a particular area. Interpretive signs shall 
be of a size that is in keeping with the character of the site. Interpretive signs shall be of a design that meets 
requirements for access to the disabled. Interpretive signs shall be designed in such a manner that is consistent 
with other interpretive signs on the site. Interpretive signs shall be constructed of materials that are of high 
quality, vandal resistant, and able to withstand harsh environmental conditions. 
 
12.30.090 Other Donations. 
There may be donations possible, other than those expressly listed or contained within this policy. The Board 
may, at their discretion, review any donation proposal and forward a recommendation. The city may accept 
those donations subject to approval by the City Council. 
 
12.30.100 Conditions  
A. Installation: Installation of donated park equipment will be scheduled at a time and date as determined by 
parks maintenance crew so as not to unnecessarily interfere with routine park maintenance activities. 
Placement of the equipment may not pose a safety risk to users of the public space or impede mowing, drainage 
or public access. 
 
B. Removal and/or Relocation: This section applies to both existing and new donations. The city reserves the 
right to remove and/or relocate donated park equipment and their associated donation 
acknowledgments/plaques, when they interfere with site safety, maintenance, or construction activities. In 
accordance with previously stated procedures in this policy, the city will send a registered letter to each 
identifiable donor notifying the donor of any action related to the disposition or relocation of the donation. In 
certain situations, such as safety or emergency situations, the notification may be made after the action taken. 

32



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 22-001 Page 5 of 5 

In the event a donation must be permanently removed; the city will, in best effort, seek an alternative location 
consistent with this policy. 
 
12.30.110 Maintenance and Repair. 
The long-term care and maintenance of donated park elements is important to both the donor and the city. 
A. Life Cycle Care Fund: The city may require the establishment of the Life Cycle Care Fund to ensure that the 
city will care for the donation/memorial for the estimated life of the donation/memorial, or until such time the 
city determines the donation must be removed and/or relocated for unforeseen circumstances. The 
establishment of a Life Cycle Care Fund applies to all donated park elements installed after the adoption of this 
policy. 
The fund is established with the intent of providing a regular revenue source dedicated and sufficient to 
reasonably maintain future donations for the duration of their expected life cycle. The cost of a donation will 
include the cost of purchase and installation, and the funds estimated to be sufficient, based upon the expected 
life cycle, for maintenance of the donated item. The expected life cycle, routine maintenance and element costs 
are identified in a separate schedule. This schedule is maintained administratively and may be modified from 
time to time to ensure that sufficient resources are available to maintain donations. 
Accordingly, the city will determine the level of maintenance required for the donated property based upon 
available budget funding and the type of care needed to reasonably maintain the donation. 
At the end of the life-cycle term, the donor may choose to extend the life-cycle term by paying for the current 
value of a new donation if deemed necessary by the Board and its associated maintenance cost. The city reserves 
the right to seek a new donor for the donation at the end of the established life cycle should the original donor 
choose not to renew the donation, or if the city has not been able to contact the original donor. 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 22-001 shall take effect upon adoption by the City of Palmer 
City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2022.  

 
 
 
 

 
_________________________ 

 Steve Carrington, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 

33



Original Parks (17-008-S) Donation Policy 
with Edits for Chapter 12.30 

 
 
 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has public land that citizens enjoy throughout the year; and  
 

WHEREAS, many citizens and visitors desire to assist and enhance these public lands 
through donating items; and 

 
WHEREAS, many citizens contribute significantly to the quality of life and should be 

memorialized on public property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board developed and 
recommends an update to standard operating procedure for accepting and maintaining donations 
and for accepting memorials for public use at Parks, Recreational, and Outdoor facilities and. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 
incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. The City of Palmer Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor Facilities 
Donation/Memorial Policy is hereby adopted to read as follows:  
 
 
1. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines, standards, and procedures for the 
acceptance, installation, and care of donated park improvements, including memorial plaques, 
either as a result of a cash or physical property donation. These donations may include, but are 
not limited to, park benches, picnic tables, bicycle racks, trees, monuments, memorials, 
banners, interpretive signs, public art, and other types of park and trails accessories. This policy 
does not apply to buildings or land. The city desires to encourage donations while at the same 
time manage aesthetic impacts and mitigate on-going maintenance cost.  Guidelines established 
by this policy will apply to all donations made after the effective date of this policy. 
Donations will be incorporated into upcoming or ongoing park improvement projects. The 
development of public facilities is expected to be the result of careful planning and quality 

34



construction. In addition, public facilities are expected to be maintained to a standard 
acceptable to the community. 
Guidelines established by this policy will apply to all donations made after the effective date of 
this policy. This policy is also designed to provide guidelines for individuals or groups should 
they desire to decorate, landscape or adorn a donation, such as a tree, bench, or picnic table 
on City owned or City maintained property. 
 
Standards established by this policy will apply to donated equipment, installation techniques, 
memorial plaques, donation plaques, decoration and long-term care of all donations made after 
the adoption of this policy. Materials and design of such donations shall be reviewed by the 
Palmer Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Board (the Board); 
A.  Donations approved by the Board as COP Palmer standards item may be accepted by the 
Parks and Facility Manager. 
B. The Board shall forward their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed 
donation to City Council for final action on any non-standard park and facility donation. 
 
2. STANDARDS FOR DONATIONS  
A. Acquisition or Purpose: The City and the community have an interest in ensuring that park 
and trail elements donated and installed be of high quality related to style, appearance, durability 
and ease of maintenance. The Board will be responsible for review and approval of material and 
design of all park elements.  The Board may approve periodically COP standard items for park, 
trail, recreational facilities and outdoor facilities.   
B. Appearance and Aesthetics: The City and the community have an interest in ensuring the 
best appearance and aesthetic quality of their public facilities. Park elements or Memorial Plaques  
and/or their associated donation acknowledgments should reflect the character of the park or 
facility. Prior to installation, the Board must determine that all park elements will be installed in 
such a manner that will not substantially change the character of a facility or its intended use. 
C. Cost: The City has an interest in ensuring that the donor covers the full cost of the donation, 
installation, and maintenance for the expected life cycle of donated park elements. A separate 
fee schedule is maintained in which the city will detail costs for donations, installation, and 
maintenance. The city also has an interest in ensuring that ongoing maintenance costs do not 
negatively impact the resources available for maintenance of other City Park facilities. 
Consequently, the City will assess, at the time of donation, a charge sufficient to cover anticipated 
ongoing maintenance of donated park elements during their expected life expectancy. 
 
D. Maintenance: Donated Park elements and/or their associated donation plaques or memorial 
plaques, become City property. Accordingly, the city has the duty to maintain the donation only 
for the expected life cycle of the donation. (See Section 11 for more information on life cycle.) If 
current information is on file, the donor will be informed and given the opportunity to take further 
action at the expiration of the original life cycle. 
 
E. Repair: The community has an interest in ensuring that all park elements remain in good 
repair. In addition, the public has an interest in ensuring that the short and long-term repair costs 
are reasonable. Repair parts and materials must be readily available. Donated Park elements must 
be of high quality to ensure a long life, be resistant to the elements, wear and tear, and to acts 
of vandalism. 

35



 
3. PROCEDURE FOR MAKING A DONATION 
The City's Community Development office will manage all donations located on City Park, 
Recreational Facilities, and Outdoor facilities property, with the assistance of the Parks 
Maintenance Crew. 
 
A. Application: The donor must contact The Applications are sent to the Community 
Development office to determine whether a donation may be accepted based upon criteria 
contained in this policy. If a donation can be accepted, the donor will complete an application 
form. Applications are available through the mail or in person at the Community Development 
office. 
 
4. CRITERIA FOR ACCEPTANCE 
A. Park Plan: To accept donation of a park element for a specific park facility, a park plan must 
exist showing the available locations for park elements. If no plan exists or a plan exists but does 
not identify a particular park element proposed for donation then a donation may be made to 
another facility accepted if the donation 1) meets a true need of the facility, 2) not interfere with 
the intended current or future use or function of the facility and 3) not require the relocation of 
other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the donation. In the opinion of the city, a 
facility may be determined to be fully developed and the opportunity for donations would not be 
available. 
B. Donation Plaques: Donation plaques, as approved by the Board, are to be directly affixed 
to the donation and/or, are to be made of bronze and purchased through the City. Donation 
plaques will be a maximum 5" x 7" or 2" x 18" inches in size (depending on the donated item), 
utilize either "Palatine" or "Cheltenham Light" lettering and numbers, have a leatherette or 
travertine background texture, be of dark brown oxide stain and be manufactured by a City 
approved vendor to ensure highest quality, life and durability. In cases where bronze plaques are 
not feasible, the Board may approve alternative types. 
In park bench applications, the donation plaque will be affixed to the front of the seat back of 
the bench. In picnic table applications, the donation a plaque will be affixed to the table top. In 
tree installation applications, the donation plaque will be installed on a post or on a stone next to 
the base of the tree. 
C. Notification: It shall be the responsibility of the donor to provide the Community 
Development office with a current address for purposes of notification regarding their donation. 
For the purposes of notification, the City will send a certified letter to the donor, notifying the 
donor of changes related to the status of their donation (i.e. a need to remove, relocate, or 
comply with conditions set forth in this policy). 
 
D.  Memorial Plaques:  Memorial plaques, as approved by the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board and confirmed by city council are reserved for individuals who, over the course of time, 
have made a significant contribution to the welfare of a park, recreational facility or outdoor 
facility.  Applications for memorials are submitted by individuals or organizations and are acted 
upon at the next duly noticed public meeting for the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board.  A 
resolution by the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is then forwarded to City Council for final 
resolution. A person memorialized must have been deceased for a minimum of one year, or an 
event must have occurred a minimum of one year ago for an application to be submitted. 

36



Donated memorial plaques are reserved for individuals/events who have had an instrumental role 
in the promotion, establishment, maintenance, administration, or leadership of a park, 
recreational facility or outdoor facility.  This may include an organization, member of an 
organization or an individual who has donated indirectly to the development of a park, 
recreational facility or outdoor facility. 
 
To accept a memorial plaque for a specific park, recreational facility or outdoor facility it must 
meet the Standards for Donations in Section 2 of the Parks, Recreational and Outdoor Facilities 
Donation/Memorial Policy.   Memorial Plaques as approved by the board shall meet the Criteria 
for Acceptance set forth in Section 4B of the Parks, Recreational Facilities and Outdoor Facilities 
Donation/Memorial Policy. The memorial plaque must be an element of an adopted memorial 
area within the park, recreational facility or outdoor facility.  If the Memorial is not an element 
of a memorial area it must: 1) meet a true need of the facility, 2) not interfere with the 
intended current or future use or functionality of the facility and 3) not require the relocation of 
other equipment or infrastructure to accommodate the donation. 4) The memorial has timeless 
qualities and makes a statement of significance to future generations. 5) The memorial 
represents a person or event deemed significant to Palmer’s history. 
 
5. PARK BENCHES, PICNIC TABLES, & BICYCLE RACKS 
Park benches, picnic tables, bicycle racks, and playground components may be placed in locations 
approved by the Board in accordance with an available site plan approved by City Council. Items 
donated must be of a product approved by the Board, and these items become City property at 
time of donation. 
 
6. TREES 
Landscaping and plant selection for park facilities is critical due to the wind conditions, soils, and 
winter weather in Palmer. Accordingly, location, size and specie of tree or trees proposed for 
donation shall be limited to those reviewed and recommended by the Board. The Board shall 
forward their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed tree(s) to City Council for 
final action. 
Trees will only be accepted for areas with suitable soils for the species and areas that have access 
to public water supply in place. 
A. Minimum Tree Size: 
Coniferous trees shall have a minimum height of six feet (6'); and 
Deciduous trees shall have a minimum caliper (diameter or thickness) of two inches (2''). 
 
B. Prohibited Plant Species: 
Acerplatanoides      Norway Maple 
Aegopodium podagraria     Bishop's Weed 
Berberis sp.      Barberry 
Caragana arborescens     Siberian Pea Shrub  
Eleagnus sp       Russian Olive  
Euonymus alatus      Burning Bush  
Fallopia japonica      Japanese Knotweed  
Ligistrum sp      Privet 
Lonicera japonica      Japanese Honeysuckle  

37



Polygonum sp       Knotweed 
Populus alba       White Poplar  
Prunus padus       European Bird Cherry  
Rosa multiflora      Multiflora Rose 
Sorbaria sorbifolia      False Spirea 
Sorbus aucuparia     European Mountain Ash  
Viburnum opulus     European Cranberry Bush 
 
 
 
7. MONUMENTS 
Upright monuments or monuments resembling those typically found in cemeteries may not be 
installed at any City Park facility. Exceptions to this policy are monuments installed by the City 
commemorating the history and/or dedication of a park facility. 
8. INTERPRETIVE & OTHER DONATED PARK SIGNS 
Interpretive and other donated park signs as recommended by the Board. The Board shall forward 
their recommendation as to the acceptance of the proposed sign to City Council for final action. 
Signs shall be consistent with any adopted City way finding standards may be installed at sites 
that are appropriate for describing the history, geology, environment, and flora and fauna of a 
particular area. Interpretive signs shall be of a size that is in keeping with the character of the 
site. Interpretive signs shall be of a design that meets requirements for access to the disabled. 
Interpretive signs shall be designed in such a manner that is consistent with other interpretive 
signs on the site. Interpretive signs shall be constructed of materials that are of high quality, 
vandal resistant, and able to withstand harsh environmental conditions. 
 
9. OTHER DONATIONS 
There may be donations possible, other than those expressly listed or contained within this policy. 
The Board may, at their discretion, review any donation proposal and forward a recommendation. 
The City may accept those donations subject to approval by the City Council. 
 
10. CONDITIONS  
A. Installation: Installation of donated park equipment will be scheduled at a time and date as 
determined by parks maintenance crew so as not to unnecessarily interfere with routine park 
maintenance activities. 
Placement of the equipment may not pose a safety risk to users of the public space or impede 
mowing, drainage or public access. 
B. Removal and/or Relocation: This section applies to both existing and new donations. The 
City reserves the right to remove and/or relocate donated park equipment and their associated 
donation acknowledgments/plaques, when they interfere with site safety, maintenance, or 
construction activities. In accordance with previously stated procedures in this policy, the City will 
send a registered letter to each identifiable donor notifying the donor of any action related to the 
disposition or relocation of the donation. In certain situations, such as safety or emergency 
situations, the notification may be made after the action taken. 

38



In the event a donation must be permanently removed; the City will, in best effort, seek an 
alternative location consistent with this policy. 
 
11. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 
The long-term care and maintenance of donated park elements is important to both the donor 
and the city. 
A. Life Cycle Care Fund: The establishment of the Life Cycle Care Fund ensures that the City 
will care for the donation for the estimated life of the donation, or until such time the City 
determines the donation must be removed and/or relocated for unforeseen circumstances. The 
establishment of a Life Cycle Care Fund applies to all donated park elements installed after the 
adoption of this policy. 
The fund is established with the intent of providing a regular revenue source dedicated and 
sufficient to reasonably maintain future donations for the duration of their expected life cycle. 
The cost of a donation will include the cost of purchase and installation, and the funds estimated 
to be sufficient, based upon the expected life cycle, for maintenance of the donated item. The 
expected life cycle, routine maintenance and element costs are identified in a separate schedule. 
This schedule is maintained administratively and may be modified from time to time to ensure 
that sufficient resources are available to maintain donations. 
Accordingly, the City will determine the level of maintenance required for the donated property 
based upon available budget funding and the type of care needed to reasonably maintain the 
donation. 
At the end of the life-cycle term, the donor may choose to extend the life-cycle term by paying 
for the current value of a new donation if deemed necessary by the Board and its associated 
maintenance cost. The City reserves the right to seek a new donor for the donation at the end of 
the established life cycle should the original donor choose not to renew the donation, or if the 
City has not been able to contact the original donor. 
 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 21-0XX shall take effect upon adoption by the 
city of Palmer City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2022.  

 
 
 

39



40



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   January 11, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 1 of 4 
 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
January 11, 2022 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on January 11, 2022, in the Council Chambers, 
Palmer, Alaska.  Mayor Carrington called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
B. ROLL CALL: 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 

Steve Carrington, Mayor  Sabrena Combs 
 Pamela Melin, Deputy Mayor   Brian Daniels 
 Jill Valerius (on Zoom)   Richard Best (on Zoom) 
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
John Moosey, City Manager (on Zoom)   Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
Sarah Heath, City Attorney   
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
1. Approval of Consent Agenda 

a) Action Memorandum No. 22-001: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of 
Alaska of the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection for Turkey Red Liquor License No. 
4758 of Licensed Premises Diagram Change 

b) Action Memorandum No. 22-002: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and 
Execute a Management Services Contract with Eagle Golf Course Management, Inc. for 
the Operation of the Palmer Municipal Golf Course to Reflect 2022 Payments 

c) Action Memorandum No. 22-003: Authorizing the City Manager to Sign Palmer 
Museum of History and Art’s Contract Amendment No. 10 for Care, Custody and Control 
of Historical Artifacts Owned by the City in the Amount of $55,400 to Reflect 2022 
Payments 

d) Action Memorandum No. 22-004: Authorizing the City Manager to Sign Amendment 
No. 2, Palmer Museum of History and Art’s Management Service Contract Amendment for 
Operation of the Visitor Center in the Amount of $71,115 to Reflect 2022 Payments 

e) Action Memorandum No.  22-005: Authorize the City Manager to Execute a Contract 
Addendum with HDL Engineering Consultants, LLC in the Amount of $124,272 for the 
Additional Design Work Associated with the 2021 Taxiway (N) November Design Project 
for the New Aircraft Parking Apron E 

f) Action Memorandum No.  22-006: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Richelle 
Carmichael for Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board with Term 
Ending December 31, 2024 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a) November 23, 2021, Special and Regular Meeting 

41



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   January 11, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 of 4 
 

b) December 7, 2021, Special Meeting 
 
Council Member Best requested to move item D. 1. a. to New Business.  There were no objections.  
 
     Main Motion: To approve the Consent Agenda as amended and Minutes. 
           Moved by: Best 
      Seconded by: Melin 
                  Vote: Unanimous  
               Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 

 
F. REPORTS 
 

1. City Manager’s Report 
Community Development Director Brad Hanson introduced community member Brad Zirkle, who 
volunteered to help fix the train engine by the Depot that was damaged during the recent 
windstorm. 
 
City Manager John Moosey reported on the following: 

• Welcomed new City Attorney Sarah Heath. 
• Deputy Mayor’s presentation to the local legislators. 
• Governor’s budget included funds for the City’s Wastewater Clarifier Project. 
• Request for Proposals for IT Services, newspaper notice publications, and meeting 

broadcast services. 
• City Disaster Declaration executed. 
• Mat-Su Borough Disaster Relief information request of businesses and residents. 
• 41 years of service to the city by employee Joan Patterson 

 
2. Mayor’s Report 
Deputy Mayor Melin provided an overview of the Valley Mayors and Managers Meeting. 
 
Mayor Carrington reported on the following: 

• City Disaster Declaration. 
• Council Seat vacancy process. 

 
Discussion followed regarding the vacancy process. 
 
3. City Clerk’s Report 
City Clerk Shelly Acteson reported on the following: 

• Recall petitions were filed with the Clerk today. 
  
4. City Attorney Report 

City Attorney Sarah Heath reported on the following: 
• Timeline of the council vacancy process according to the Code. 

 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

Cindy Hudgins: 
• Commented on submitting the signatures for the three recall petitions to the City Clerk today. 

 

42



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   January 11, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Jackie Goforth: 

• Referenced AS 44.62.310 violations and the Mat-Su Moms for Justice Facebook Group. 
• Referenced the City Code of Ethics document. 
• Demanded that the three council members that were the subject of the recall petitions, are 

hoist by their own petard. 
 

Mike Chmielewski: 
• Welcomed the new City Attorney. 
• Spoke in favor of the city updating its website to be informative and useful for the public, 

especially during a crisis like the windstorm. 
 

 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
1. Resolution 22-006:  Authorize the City Manager to advance $899,910.28 from the General 

Fund Unassigned Fund Balance to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Phase 2 Project for the 
Second Tranche of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 
 

Mayor Carrington opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 22-006. Seeing no one come forward and 
hearing no objection from the Council, Mayor Carrington closed the public hearing. 
 

Main Motion: To Adopt Resolution No. 22-006 
Moved by: Valerius 

Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Action Memorandum No. 22-001: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of 

the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection for Turkey Red Liquor License No. 4758 of 
Licensed Premises Diagram Change 
 

Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-001 
Moved by: Melin 

Seconded by: Valerius 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
Council Member Best inquired if the Clerk had received any comments on the proposed change. The 

Clerk stated no comments had been received. 
 

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

Jacki Goforth: 

43



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   January 11, 2022, Regular Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 of 4 
 

• Read aloud a Mat-Su Moms for Justice post and commented on the worldwide effects of the 
black lives matter group. 

 
Cindy Hudgins: 

• Questioned if the council members subject to the recall really care about Palmer. 
• Stated if those members truly loved Palmer, they would just resign and save the city the cost 

of a recall election. 
 
M. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Council Member Daniels and Council Member Valerius: 
• Welcomed new city Attorney Sarah Heath. 
• Thanked the MEA linemen and countless others who helped during the recent windstorm. 

 
Council Member Best: 

• Reiterated other members’ comments and reminded Council of the keep in mind the Golden 
Heart Award. 

• Spoke with pride of the community members during the storm. 
 
Deputy Mayor Melin: 

• Gave a shout out to our first responders. 
• Noted that many acts of kindness were observed during the storm and its aftermath. 
• Suggested the city and Borough come together to adopt a 211-information option for 

residents to rely on. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 
APPROVED this ___ day of February, 2022. 
 
 
              
       ________________________________________ 
       Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 
______________________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 
 

44



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 5 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
January 25, 2022 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on January 25, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor Carrington called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Steve Carrington, Mayor 
Pamela Melin, Deputy Mayor 
Richard W. Best (participated telephonically) 
 

Sabrena Combs (participated telephonically) 
Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius (participated telephonically

 Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

John Moosey, City Manager 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 

Sarah Heath, City Attorney 
Holly Dubose, Deputy City Clerk

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a) Action Memorandum No. 22-007: To Authorize the City Manager to Execute a New 

Lease  with Birdhouse Holdings, LLC on Helipad Lease Lot’s 1 and 2  Block 3, Palmer 
Municipal Airport for the Purpose of Constructing a New Aircraft Hangar  

b) Action Memorandum No. 22-008: Authorize the City Manager to Purchase One TR310 
Case Compact Track Loader and Attachments under the Governmental and Proprietary 
Procurements Section of Palmer Municipal Code 3.21.230 by attaching to the Sourcewell 
Contract#32119-CNH awarded to CNH Industrial America LLC 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a) December 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda, Consent Agenda, and Minutes,  

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUEST 

 
F. REPORTS 

1. City Manager’s Report 
City Manager Moosey reported the following: 
• Letter of Support for the Governor’s 2023 Bond Program. 
• Met with Mayors & Murkowski on Making America Better partnership. 

45



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5 

 
2. Mayor’s Report 

Mayor Carrington reported on the following: 
• Interviews conducted for the open council member position. 
• Attendance in the Arctic Symposium Program via zoom. 
• City of Palmer hosted a Managers and Mayor meeting in Council Chambers. 

 
3. City Clerk’s Report 

City Clerk Acteson reported the following: 
• Recall petition has sufficient number of signatures. 
• Official notification of timeline will be at February 8,2022, Regular Council Meeting. 
• Introduction of Holly Dubose, Deputy City Clerk. 
 

4. City Attorney’s Report 
City Attorney Heath reported the following: 
• Asked for clarification from Council on how they would like the process and updates on Council 

Members seeking Attorney insight. 
 

G. OATH OF OFFICE NEW COUNCIL MEMBER 
 

Council Member Carolina Anzilotti was sworn in as a new Council Member by City Clerk Acteson. 
 

H. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
  
      Diane Firmani: 

• Addressed the removal of her late husband Dave “The Hammer” memorial plaque removed from 
the MTA Events Center 

 
      Mike Coons: 

• Asked where the money for the special election comes from. 
• Asked for the resignation of Council Members Combs, Daniels and Valerius. 
• Commented in favor of opening the Alcan Highway for food to come into Alaska. 
 

      Brice Burkhart: 
• Provided clarification on Council grant for Who Let the Girls Out. 
 

Dickey Hudgins: 
• Commented unfavorably on Moms for Social Justice Matter Facebook group. 

 
Kerry Saunders: 

• Encouraged Council to rehang plaque for “The Hammer”. 
 
Mike Chmielewski: 

• Expressed confusion about process of discussion that happened among Council Members 
concerning rehanging the plaque. 

• Encouraged new staff and Council Member to speak up and ask questions. 
 

Jackie Goforth: 
• Provided open meetings act info from the City of Fairbanks. 
• Commented on the City’s Ethics Policy. 

 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

No public hearings were held. 

46



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5 

 
J. UNFINISHED BUINESS 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Action Memorandum No. 22-009: Approving a Council Community Grant to United Way of Mat-
Su 

 
Main Motion: AM 22-009, CC Grant to United Way, requested $2,500 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Daniels 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Tabled 

 
Council Member Best questioned the use of the funds. Manager Moosey and Council Member Combs 
provided additional information. 
 

Primary Amendment #1: To Amend amount from $2,500 to $1,500 
Moved by: Melin 

Seconded by: N/A 
Vote: No vote 

Action: Motion Failed for Lack of a second 
 

Primary Amendment #2: To Table Action on AM 22-009, until the next meeting, awaiting 
more information from United Way of Mat-Su 

Moved by: Best 
Seconded by: Melin 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion carried 

 
2. Action Memorandum No. 22-010: Approving a Council Community Grant to Who let the Girls Out 

 
Main Motion: Action Memorandum No. 22-010: Approving a Council Community Grant to 

Who let the Girls Out 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Daniels 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried as amended 
 

Primary Amendment #1: To Amend amount from $2,500 to $1,500 
Moved by: Melin 

Seconded by: Combs 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 

3. Action Memorandum No. 22-011: the Authorizing City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a 
Three-year Brand License Agreement with Matanuska Telephone Association for the MTA 

 
Main Motion: Action Memorandum No.  22-011: Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and 

Execute a Three-year Brand License Agreement with Matanuska Telephone 
Association for the MTA Events Center 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 

47



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
L. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Acteson reported correspondence pages and white paper were Items Placed on the Table. 
 
City Clerk Acteson reported the following documents were Items Placed on the Table: 

• Correspondence from Mike Coons. 
• White paper from Economic review from John Moosey. 
• Correspondence from Sammye Pokryfki. 

 
M. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Mike Coons: 
• Encouraged the Council Members to write a letter to Joe Biden to lift vaccine mandate to allow 

truckers into Canada. 
 
      Dickey Hudgins: 

• Spoke regarding United Way allocations and his disapproval of some of the ways that money is used 
in the city. 
 

 Eric Anderson: 
• Spoke regarding plaque placement discussion and the great character of “The Hammer”. 
• Encouraged Council to do their homework on ordinances and policies prior to meetings. 

 
Jackie Goforth: 
• Recited from the City code of ethics. 
• Demand of resignation of Council Members that are the subject of current recall petitions. 

 
Brice Burkhart: 
• Gave appreciation for grant approval for the Who Let The Girls Out event. 

 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Daniels: 

• Welcomed New Council Member Carolina Anzilotti. 
• Apologized to the family of Dave “The Hammer” and requested support for directing the City Manager 

to find an appropriate place to put up the memorial plaque while the Council revisits the  
memorial/donation policy.  Deputy Mayor Melin offered support in the form of a second. 
 

Council Member Best objected and requested a formal vote of the body. 
 
 

Main Motion: To Direct the City Manager to find a temporary place to hang the plaque 
while the Council works on the donation/memorial policy. 

Moved by: Daniels 
Seconded by: Melin 

Vote: 3-Yes/ 4-No; opposed – Valerius, Best, Combs, and Anzilotti 
Action: Motion Failed 

 

48



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5 

Council Member Best provided a detailed explanation for his objection, noting that it would not be fair to the 
Hammer family to temporarily put the plaque up and then possibly having to remove it based on the revised 
policy. Discussion followed. 
 
Deputy Mayor Melin: 

• Apologized to the Hammer family and looks forward to moving forward with a revised policy. 
 
Council Member Combs: 

• Spoke in favor a permanent solution versus a quick fix for the donation policy issue. 
• Welcomed the new Deputy City Clerk. 

 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 
_______________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 
 
 

49



50



 
Glenn Highway MP 34-42 Projects 

Glenn Highway MP 34-42 Reconstruction, Project Number 0A15024/Z581040000 
Parks Highway to Old Glenn Highway Pathway, Project Number 0A15032/CFHWY00029 
Colleen Street Intersection and Frontage Road, Project Number 0A15033/CFHWY00006 
 

Project website: www.brooks-alaska.com/glennhighway 
 

Updated 4/28/2021 

FACT SHEET 

 

 

Description 
The purposes of the Glenn Highway 
Milepost (MP) 34-42 projects are to 
accomodate increasing traffic and reduce 
safety risks.  Crews will complete 
construction of all three projects in two 
phases as described below.  These 
projects will add lanes, widen shoulders, 
add turn lanes and frontage roads, and 
add a separated pathway.  The final 
roadway will be a four-lane divided 
highway from the Parks Highway to West 
Arctic Avenue.   

Phase 1 COMPLETE 
The phase 1, South Inner Springer Loop to 
West Arctic Avenue, is complete.  We 
hope the public is enjoying the new 
pathway from Bogard to Outer Springer.  

Phase 2 Current Status 
Phase 2 design is complete and utility relocation designs are ongoing.  Due to continuing coordination 
efforts, construction of the phase 2 roadway and pathway is expected to begin in 2022, pending 
availability of funding, etc., and take two seasons.   

The Colleen Street Intersection and Frontage Road project is included in phase 2.  The scope includes a 
traffic signal on the Glenn Highway to connect South Colleen Street and East Bradley Lake Avenue on 
the west side and East Grandview Road on the east side to the Glenn Highway.  A railroad siding is also 
planned between Outer Springer Loop and the fairgrounds.   

For more information 
Contact the project team with questions, concerns, comments, or compliments any time.  

Project Team 

Anne Brooks, P.E. 
Public Involvement Coordinator 
Brooks & Associates 
(907) 242-6405 
anne.brooksalaska@gmail.com 

Dennis Linnell, P.E.  
Design Project Manager  
HDL Engineering Consultants 
(907) 564-2120 
dlinnell@hdlalaska.com 

Sean Baski, P.E.  
Project Manager  
DOT&PF 
(907) 269-0547 
sean.baski@alaska.gov 

51



52



Mayor’s Report for January 25, 2022 

Th e  Gold e n  He a r t  

The  purpose  of the  Golden Hea rt  Life t ime  Achievem ent  Awa rd is  to  honor a  
m em ber of the  Pa lm e r com m unity tha t has exhib ited  kindness, passion , and  the  
unwavering p ioneering sp irit of Pa lm er. 

In  PMC 2.04.150 the  council is  to  subm it nom ina tions and  se lect a  winner or 
winners by the  2nd m ee ting in  January so the  m ayor can  award  them  by February 
14. We m issed  th is de adline , bu t I would  ask council to  subm it nom ina tions by 
February 8 m ee ting so we  can  se lect winne rs and  then  award  them  a t our February 
22 m ee ting la te r th is m onth . 

Logistica lly the  City Cle rk’s Office  assists  in  accepting nom ina tions and  agenda  
docum en ts. The  City Manager’s Office  prepares the  ce rtifica tes, orde rs cake , and  
ge ts m ee ting beverages. Council Mem bers contacts the  recip ie n ts they nom ina te d  
to  se t up  them  com ing to  the  1st m ee ting in  February. 

 

Golden Heart Lifetime Achievement Award Winners 

• 2014 
o Leisa Carrick 
o Ruth Estelle 
o Pat Lawton 
o Denise Statz 

• 2015 
o No award was given this year 

• 2016 
o Wayne Bouwens 
o Janette Bower 
o Jo Ehmann 
o Ken Erbey 

• 2017 
o Stan Guthrie 
o Eve Hermon 
o Gene Horner 

• 2018 
o Linda Combs 

• 2019 
o Howard Bess 
o Richard Best 
o Janet Kincaid 
o MariJo Parks 

• 2020 
o Dr. Alex Hill 
o Betty Pierce 
o Gary Wolf 

• 2021 
o Joan Patterson 
o Ailis Vann 
o Randi Bernier 
o Terry Snyder 

 

I would also like to highlight an ongoing project of the Palmer Fire & Rescue Explorers. 
Interested teens should contact Chief Chad Cameron at 907-745-3854 for more information. 
Following is their flyer: 

53



 

54



55



56



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-007 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 22-007 

 
Subject:  Accepting and Appropriating Healthy & Equitable Communities Grant Funds from the State of Alaska, 
Department of Health and Social Services, and Division of Public Health in the Amount of $42,080.80 to Provide 
Support to the Community for COVID-19 Response and Mitigation Activities. 
 
Agenda of: February 8, 2022 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 42,080.80 
 

This legislation (√): 
√ Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 42,080.80 
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
√ Not budgeted  08-00-00-3988 State Grant 08-01-10-7180 DHSS HEC Grant 

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

57



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-007 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 22-007 
2. Memorandum of Agreement 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The funds from this grant will expand infrastructure support by providing free access to internet and improved 
technologic capabilities to socio-economic vulnerable residents of the community as identified in the Alaska Health 
Equity index for Palmer Census Tracts. 
 
The City of Palmer will increase the signal strength of the WiFi at the following three (4) locations: 
City Hall - 231 W Evergreen 
Depot – 610 S Valley Way 
Library – 655 S Valley Way 
MTA Center – 1317 S Kerry Weiland Ct 
 
Increased signal strength at these public locations will allow residents to access reliable bandwidth whether they 
are inside or outside the building.  The City of Palmer will also purchase iPads to increase the availability of devices 
to citizens. This will improve the access to Tele-health services, easing the burden of in-person visits to local 
medical facilities.  
 
The City of Palmer will purchase and install projection equipment with Bluetooth and internet capabilities that are 
compatible with existing sound and screen equipment at the Palmer Community Center.  
 
This project will improve a public space (Palmer Community Center) allowing community partners to increase the 
information dissemination by expanding Palmer Community Center’s infrastructure capabilities.  It will further 
support the expansion of Wi-Fi in downtown community spaces providing electronic equipment that will support 
this transmission of information. The Palmer Community Center is available to community partners and residents 
for social, community and public gatherings.  This facility is sufficient to provide the gathering space necessary 
for social distancing.  
 
This funding also includes $5,488.80 to support activities that will decrease health inequity for homeless 
populations. The City of Palmer will partner with A Black Sheep Ministry, a local warming shelter, to utilize these 
funds. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 22-007. 
 
 

58



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-007 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 22-007 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and Appropriate 
Healthy & Equitable Communities Grant Funds from the State of Alaska, Department of Health and 
Social Services, and Division of Public Health in the Amount of $42,080.80 to Provide Support to 
the Community for COVID-19 Response and Mitigation Activities. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer strives to serve well its residents and surrounding population; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer will expand its infrastructure for the common good; and 
 
WHEREAS, $5,488.80 will be transferred to A Black Sheep Ministry to serve the Homeless population. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby to accept and appropriate 

Healthy & Equitable Communities grant funds from the State of Alaska, Department of Health and Social Services, 
and Division of Public Health in the amount of $42,080.80 to provide support to the community for COVID-19 
response and mitigation activities. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby the Palmer City Council 

hereby to authorize the City Manager to execute the grant as offered. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 8th day of February 2022. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Steven J Carrington, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Shelly Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by:  

Date:  
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

59



 

 

Department of 
Health and Social Services 

 
FINANCE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

Juneau Office  
 

P.O. Box 110650 

Juneau, Alaska 99811-0650 

Main: 907.465.3082 

Fax: 907.465.2499 

  

 

 

Healthy & Equitable Communities 

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), Between  

State of Alaska – Department of Health and Social Services 

Division of Public Health (DPH) 

- and – 

City of Palmer 

MOA # C0622-584-P 

 

 

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
The State of Alaska, Dept of Health and Social Services, Division of Public Health will provide funding to 
Alaskan local governments in support of creating and sustaining healthy and equitable communities around 
the state.  
 
Funding will support the following activities and strategies to promote and build healthy & equitable 
communities around the state. All funded activities must have an emphasis on high risk, underserved 
population groups. 
 

• Ensure a fair and adequate baseline of care is established for populations at higher risk 
that are underserved and who are disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 by 
expanding existing or developing new mitigation and prevention resources and services; 

• Increase/improve data collection and reporting for populations disproportionately 
affected by COVID-19 to guide current and future pandemic response; 

• Build, leverage or expand infrastructure support for COVID-19 or future pandemic 
prevention and control among populations that are at higher risk or underserved; 

• Mobilize partners to build and promote healthy and equitable communities, improving 
everyone’s opportunities for living a healthy life, particularly those who are 
disproportionately impacted by COVID-19; 

• Improve access to COVID-19 vaccine, as well as other necessary vaccines, for individuals 
who are higher risk or underserved. 

 
 
 

60



 

 

 
II. THE STATE OF ALASKA DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH (DPH) AGREES TO: 

Provide support to the community for COVID-19 response and mitigation activities. The Healthy & Equitable 
Communities Project Team is available to consult and provide technical assistance to government entities for 
health equity and homeless support funds and to pre-approve pass-through recipients of award funding. The 
team will also ensure that approved activities meet the funding requirements. 

 

DPH agrees to provide a total of $42,080.80 in funds in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 

 

Of this amount, $36,592.00 must be spent according to the attached application.  

 

An additional $5,488.80 is provided to support activities that will decrease health inequity for homeless 
populations. Proposed activities to be funded by this money must be submitted for approval by the state 
project director, prior to beginning the activity. The proposed activity must be approved in writing. 

 

 
III. CITY OF PALMER AGREES TO: 

Conduct the services as described in the attached application and proposal response (both follow the last 
page of this MOA). 
 
Submit, in writing, a description of the proposed activities for the healthy equity for homeless populations 
funds ($5,488.80), to the Project Director. Approval of the proposed activities must be received, in writing, 
prior to beginning the activity. 
 
Invoicing 
The recipient will submit quarterly invoices detailing services performed. Quarterly invoices should be 
supported with completed reporting templates and any applicable backup documentation such as receipts, 
payroll information, sub award agreements, etc. Invoices are due January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15 
for each quarter. 
 
The invoice must: 

• Reference the recipient’s name, address, and phone number 

• Reference the contract number: C0622-584-P 

• Include an invoices number 

• Reference the Alaska Division of Public Health – Healthy & Equitable Communities MOA 
 
Send invoices to:  hss.publichealth@alaska.gov 
   (reference ‘C0622-584-P MOA Reimbursement Request’ in the subject line) 

Failure to include the required information on invoices may cause an unavoidable delay to the payment 

process. The State will pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of invoice approval by the project director. The 

recipient shall submit final invoices no later than 30 days after the MOA expires. 

 
IV. JOINT RESPONSIBILITIES: 

Should there be a conflict amongst the documents, the following order of precedence shall apply: first, this 
agreement; second, the application; third, the proposal. 
 
Both parties agree to communicate timely and effectively as needed to support the goals of this agreement. 
Points of contact for both parties are as follows: 

61

mailto:hss.publichealth@alaska.gov


 

 

 
State of Alaska – DPH: 
Primary Points of Contact:  Maria Caruso, Project Director 
    Maria.caruso@alaska.gov 
    907-310-6092 
 
 
Send invoices to:   hss.publichealth@alaska.gov 
    (reference C0622-584-P MOA Reimbursement Request in the subject line) 
 
 
 
City of Palmer: 
Primary Point of Contact:  John Moosey 
    jmoosey@palmerak.org 
    907-761-1317 
 
Finance Point of Contact: Gena Davis, Finance Director 
    gdavis@palmerak.org 
    907-761-1314 

 

 

 
V. PERIOD OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION: 

This agreement will be in effect from the date of execution through May 31, 2023. The services 

may extend beyond that date by mutual agreement of by both parties. Any extension provided 

will be for time only, no additional funds will be offered.  

 
 
 

VI. SIGNATURES 

By signature of the below, both parties agree to the terms of this MOA. 

 

 

                By: _________________________________________________     Date: ____________________ 
                             Maria Caruso, DHSS Project Director 
 
 

               By: _________________________________________________     Date: ____________________ 
                     John Moosey, City of Palmer 
 
 

By: _________________________________________________     Date: ____________________ 
             Heidi Hedberg, DPH Director 
 
 

By: _________________________________________________     Date: ____________________ 
              Jason Grove, DHSS Procurement Manager 

62

mailto:Maria.caruso@alaska.gov
mailto:hss.publichealth@alaska.gov


 

1 
 

Department of  

Health and Social Services 
 

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
Director’s Office 

 
Anchorage 

3601 C Street, Suite 756 

Anchorage, Alaska 99503-5924 

Main: 907.269.8126 

Fax: 907.269.2048 

 

Healthy & Equitable Communities Memorandum of Agreement Information 

PURPOSE: 

The State of Alaska, Department of Health and Social Services, Division of Public Health will provide funding to Alaskan 
local governments in support of creating and sustaining healthy and equitable communities around the state.  
 
Funding will be available through June 30, 2024 to support the following activities and strategies to promote and build 
healthy and equitable communities around the state. All funded activities must have an emphasis on high risk, 
underserved population groups. 

 

• Ensure a fair and adequate baseline of care is established for populations at higher risk that are underserved 
and who are disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 by expanding existing or developing new mitigation 
and prevention resources and services; 

• Increase/improve data collection and reporting for populations disproportionately affected by COVID-19 to 
guide current and future pandemic response; 

• Build, leverage or expand infrastructure support for COVID-19 or future pandemic prevention and control 
among populations that are at higher risk or underserved; 

• Mobilize partners to build and promote healthy and equitable communities, improving everyone’s 
opportunities for living a healthy life, particularly those who are disproportionately impacted by COVID-19; 

• Improve access to COVID-19 vaccine, as well as other necessary vaccines, for individuals who are higher risk 
or underserved. 

  
SCOPE OF FUNDING: 
 
Strategies that are implemented should aim to build infrastructures that both improve health outcomes for higher risk 

underserved Alaskans in the current COVID-19 pandemic and set the foundation for future responses. This application 

mentions several eligible activities, but communities are not limited in scope to these examples. There are several 

resources available for communities to assist them in determining what types of activities may be proposed. The Alaska 

Health Equity Index  utilizes data from the US Census Bureau and the US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s 

Social Vulnerability Index and is an excellent reference to assist communities in identifying target populations* and areas 

of need. The Healthy Alaskans team has identified priority health topics for the Healthy Alaskans 2030 plan including 

strategies and actionable objectives within each strategy. Both resources highlight the needs of Alaskans, and 

communities are encouraged to develop plans that incorporate factors from either of these resources. 

*Target populations can include but are not limited to: 

• Low income or homeless individuals 

• Individuals/families/communities with limited access to technology/internet 

• Individuals/families/communities who face food insecurity 

• Communities with limited to no transportation access 

63

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/cc66a8099eb14838a927670937b9d272
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/cc66a8099eb14838a927670937b9d272
https://www.healthyalaskans.org/alaska-health-priorities/strategies-actions/


 

2 
 

• Individuals without access to health care 

• Populations that do not speak English as their first language 

• Rural communities/areas where physical services are not accessible 

• Refugee/immigrant communities that face economic, cultural, or linguistic barriers to accessing health care 
services 

• Individuals with disabilities 

• Older adults 

• Children 

• Individuals with mental health or substance-related disorders 
 

Funding is calculated using two factors: population size, and the Alaska Health Equity Index. 

 

ELIGIBILITY: 

Local governments are eligible to apply and may propose plans to engage one or more communities and geographic 
areas. The definition of communities may also include a group of people who have particular characteristic in common 
(e.g. share similar cultural beliefs or interests). Please work with your local tribes, borough, or municipality to ensure 
efforts are coordinated. DHSS allows recipients to act as pass-through entities to provide funding to other recipients, 
including community-based organizations serving populations who may experience health inequities. Technical 
assistance will be provided throughout the funding period to assist with reporting, advancing approved projects, pre-
approval of activities and invoice processing.  

 

If you live in an unincorporated census area or census designated place, are aware of an entity or organization that is 

interested in implementing this work and unsure about how to access this funding opportunity, please contact or 

HEcommunities@alaska.gov or maria.caruso@alaska.gov to discuss potential alternative  opportunities. Designated 

entities must have the capacity to manage funds and implement projects within the scope of the funding. If 

communities chose to pursue this route for funding, alternative entities must be identified by October 22, 2021.  The 

state intends to open up an alternate method of procurement for these entities, and the timeline for funding will be 

dependent upon the number of non-governmental entities identified across the state for this option. We will make 

every attempt to accommodate alternative requests. For entities that chose to pursue this option, please be aware 

that the funding can take significantly longer to award through alternate procurement methods. 

 

REPORTING: 
Reporting requirements will be due at the same time as invoices. Payment will not be issued unless necessary reporting 

is attached. Reporting requirements will be determined during the MOA preparation and will be dependent upon the 

type of activities selected. Entities are encouraged to collaborate with hospitals, schools and community organizations 

to improve the outcomes for their population. See attachment of Healthy and Equitable Communities Memorandum of 

Agreement fund amounts.  

  

64

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/cc66a8099eb14838a927670937b9d272
mailto:HEcommunities@alaska.gov
mailto:maria.caruso@alaska.gov


 

3 
 

PERIOD OF AGREEMENT, DATES AND DEADLINES:   

October 29, 2021 – June 30, 2024  

Important dates: 

Tuesday, October 5: 4-5pm Pre award meeting with technical assistance (4pm) 
Friday, October 8: 11-12pm 2nd Pre award meeting with technical assistance (10am) 
Friday, October 29 by 5pm Funding Requests due to HECommunities@alaska.gov  
November 2021  Award funding to Communities via signed MOA 
June 31, 2024   Final receipts due to DPH, payments issued to Communities 
 

 
 Submit questions to: Maria.caruso@alaska.gov or HEcommunities@alaska.gov  

 

TERMS OF PAYMENT: Funds will be reimbursed through invoicing upon approval of MOA.  

 

PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIRED*: 

• Construction projects 

• Vehicles 

• Furniture  

• Equipment over $25,000  

• Reimbursement of pre-award costs (will only be considered back to June 1, 2021) 

 

*If you wish to utilize funds for any of the above items, please provide a detailed description of how 

these items will fit into the overall goal of the project they will support and how they will be used. 

 

FUNDS CANNOT BE USED FOR:  

• Programs or services already funded by another HSS grant, contract or MOA 

• Research 

• Clinical care  

• Publicity or propaganda 
 

If these funds are used to administer COVID-19 testing or vaccine services recipients must: 

 
• Establish/maintain a means to ensure that the results of all COVID testing performed by this entity/sub-

recipient/pass though entity is reporting to the State of Alaska Department of Health and Social Services. 
All testing (all types, all results) is subject to this requirement and must be reported within 24 hours of 
administration 

• Establish/maintain a means to ensure that the COVID-19 vaccine administration performed by this 
entity/sub-recipient/pass though entity is reporting to the State of Alaska Department of Health and Social 
Services. All vaccinations must be reported within 24 hours of administration. Please complete the 
application in order to develop MOA.       

 
Submit completed application and W9 to: HEcommunities@alaska.gov and cc maria.caruso@alaska.gov. 
 
 
 
 
 

65

mailto:HECommunities@alaska.gov
mailto:Maria.caruso@alaska.gov
mailto:HEcommunities@alaska.gov
mailto:HEcommunities@alaska.gov
mailto:maria.caruso@alaska.gov


1 
 

Healthy and Equitable Communities Memorandum of Agreement Application 

 

Primary Contact Information: 

(Please make sure to include name, phone number, email and physical address for all contacts listed.) 
 
 Program Contact: Mr. John Moosey, Palmer City Manager 

 Phone number: 907-761-1317 

 Email: jmoosey@palmerak.org 

 Physical Address: 231 W. Evergreen Ave, Palmer, AK  99645 

 

 Finance Contact: Gina Davis, Finance Director 

 Phone number: 907-761-1314 

 Email: gdavis@palmerak.org 

 Physical Address: 231 W. Evergreen Ave, Palmer, AK  99645 

 

 Other Contact that needs to sign/be listed on the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA):  

 Contact:       

 Phone number:      

 Email:        

 Physical Address:       

 

Please list communities and partners intended to be part of this funding, either through subawards or support. 

 

Community/Partner Name(s): 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

66



2 
 

1. Build, leverage or expand infrastructure support for COVID-19 or future pandemic prevention and control with 
a focus on populations that are at higher risk and underserved: 
 Establish or enhance local staffing or coalitions to that focus on improving COVID-19 or other health outcomes 

for these populations 
 Develop or update local plans to improve health outcomes for higher risk underserved Alaskans 
 Expand local capacity to offer targeted testing and contact tracing  
 Improve local Continuity of Operations Plans (COOP) and exercises to prioritize higher risk underserved 

Alaskans 
 Improve plans for use of community facilities to include better spaces for social distancing, isolation and 

quarantine 
 Update plans for community shelter locations to ensure they are ADA compliant or can facilitate hosting health 

care pods including testing and vaccinations 
 Increase/improve access to facilities/community spaces that promote health and physical activity and serve 

high-risk populations 
 Provide training to local/regional public health or health workforce to better serve the needs of higher risk 

underserved Alaskans 
 Hire health or public health workforce who are equipped to assess and address the needs of higher risk 

underserved Alaskans, for example trusted community members or community health workers  
 Other activities (Please describe in the box below) 

  

Please see attached narrative and budget. 

 Total:  

 

67



3 
 

City of Palmer Healthy & Equitable Communities MOA  
 

Narrative 
 

The Alaska Health Equity index gave Palmer a socioeconomic ranking of 62. Palmer is comprised of 6,101 residents living 

in 1,813 households.  Children under the age of 17 make up 26.24% of the population, 12.8% of our population is over 

the age of 64. The unemployment rate is 5.8% and 12.4% of our population is uninsured. The poverty rate for Alaska is 

10.62%, Palmer ranks higher than that with 13.5% of our residents in poverty.   

In addition to the residents of The City of Palmer proper, Palmer services are heavily used by the surrounding 30,000+ 

MatSu Borough residents. The funds from this grant will expand infrastructure support by providing free access to 

internet and improved technologic capabilities to socio-economic vulnerable residents of the community as identified in 

the Alaska Health Equity index for Palmer Census Tracts. 

The City of Palmer will increase the signal strength of the WiFi at the following four (4) locations: 

City Hall - 231 W Evergreen 

Depot – 610 S Valley Way 

Library – 655 S Valley Way 

MTA Center – 1317 S Kerry Weiland Ct 

Increased signal strength at these public locations will allow residents to access reliable bandwidth whether they are 

inside or outside the building.  The City of Palmer will also purchase iPads to increase the availability of devices to 

citizens. This will improve the access to Tele-health services, easing the burden of in-person visits to local medical 

facilities.  

The City of Palmer will purchase and install projection equipment with Bluetooth and internet capabilities that are 

compatible with existing sound and screen equipment at the Palmer Community Center.  

This project will improve a public space (Palmer Community Center) allowing community partners to increase the 

information dissemination by expanding Palmer Community Center’s infrastructure capabilities.  It will further support 

the expansion of Wi-Fi in downtown community spaces providing electronic equipment that will support this 

transmission of information. The Palmer Community Center is available to community partners and residents for social, 

community and public gatherings.  This facility is sufficient to provide the gathering space necessary for social distancing.  

 

Budget 
 

WiFi Upgrade:  $16,000 

Projection Equipment:  $19,000 

iPads, accessories: $  1,592 

Total   $36,592 

 

68



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-009 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 22-009 

 
Subject:  Approving a Council Community Grant to United Way of Mat-Su 
 
Agenda of: January 25, 2022 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ $2,500 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-02-10-6068 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

69



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 22-009 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Council Community Grant Scoring Rubric 
2. Council Community Grant Application 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
The Palmer Arts & Cultural Installation Project will benefit the community by activating and enlivening publicly 
accessible spaces, inviting visitors and residents to view, discuss and take pride in the invigoration of their town 
and area, as well as bringing traffic to host sites by attracting visitors through increased "curb appeal". By 
advancing portions of the City's existing Parks and Recreational Master Plan, this project will support the Council's 
strategic priorities by continuing to improve and develop local arts and cultural opportunities; enhancing our area's 
trail systems and connectors, and contributing to the development of art offerings that can be included in future 
arts/culture plans and efforts. 
 
In February 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance NO. 14-043, which established the Council Community 
Grant Program. The City Council approved $12,000.00 in the Community Council Grants line item for 2022. 
 
Legislation # Organization Amount Requested Remaining Date Approved 
Res 22-005 Beginning Balance-2022 Budget  $12,000.00  
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 22-009 
 
 
 
 
 
  

70



71



72



73



74



75



76


	01Agenda Regular with page numbers
	02a AM 22-011 Greene Garden Services
	03a AM 22-012 - Library Grant for sidewalk Design (002)
	4a Ord 22-001, Parks Donation Ordinance 2022
	05a 1.11.22 RM Minutes
	05b 1.25.2022 RM Minutes
	06 20210428_GlennFactSheet_FINAL
	07 Mayor Report 2.08.2022
	07b Recall Certificate
	08a Res - 22-007  DHSS Healthy  Equitable Communities Grant
	09a 22-009 United Way



